
Randall D. Kelton

PO Box 1

Boyd, TX 76023

940-399-9922

randy@ruleoflawradio.com
FBI
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Greetings: 

It appears the Macon County Line runs right through the middle of the Cherokee County Court presided over by the Honorable Judge Craig Fletcher.  In Cherokee County, the most dangerous thing you can do is stand up for yourself.  Heaven forbid you should stand up for someone else.  Judge Fletcher has orchestrated a terror campaign aimed an anyone who would try to fight false criminal charges and, worse, file any sort of criminal action against the City of Jacksonville, where Judge Fletcher lives, or public officials in Cherokee County.  Attached is a statement of facts concerning the behavior of the judge.  Attached are a number of criminal complaints that have been filed against Judge Fletcher, but he is not concerned.  Judge Fletcher knows full well he can do as he pleases, violate any law and no one will do anything to stop him or interfere with the criminal enterprise he oversees.  
Question: How would you know if you were in a police state?  What would be the indications?  What if everyone accused of a crime were convicted without due course or even pretense of the application of law?  What if the average conviction rate were, say, 99.6%, would that be considered a police state?  What if a country which contained only about 3% of the world’s population were to house some 50% of the world’s population of inmates?  Would that be considered a police state?  What if the police could do as they pleased with no consideration or concern for consequences, would that be a police state.  

If you want to know what a police state looks like just come to Cherokee County, they will show you.  David Baugh knows what a police state looks like.  He spent over 200 days in jail because he fought a false arrest for failure to identify.  Robert Fox also knows what a police state is as he is arrested by Judge Fletcher every time he comes to Fletcher’s court on a different unfounded allegation for the singular purpose, as stated by City of Jacksonville Chief of Police, to run Fox out of funds so that he would get trapped in jail, which he did.  Fox spent over a hundred days in jail with no charges against him.  You can verify the improper practices indicated above by simply asking Special Agent Garret Floyd.  He knows all about it but refuses to investigate or intercede in any way to stop the improper practices. 
Now Judge Fletcher is coming after this writer, for the sole reason that I gave a set of criminal complaints to the grand jury in Cherokee County alleging wrongdoing on the part of Judge Fletcher.  I have been accused of operating an investigating company.  It was alleged that I committed the offense on the 23rd day of March, 2009, which happens to be the day I filed criminal charges against Judge Fletcher and it was Judge Fletcher who singed the document claiming to have found probable cause.  This is ironic as I had notified Judge Fletcher, in open court, that I had filed criminal allegations against him for his improper practices in the Robert Fox case.  The court Judge was holding at the time was a hearing in the Robert Fox case.  Judge Fletcher held that hearing after Robert Fox had filed criminal charges against Judge Fletcher on the 23rd of October, 2008 and subsequently filed a motion to disqualify Judge Fletcher.  Judge Fletcher had just refused to act on the motion to disqualify himself; he denied the motion in open court.  That was when I rose and addressed the court notifying the court that I had filed criminal complaints against Judge Fletcher that day and he had a duty to stand down from the bench.  

This is the reason I have been charged and the reason Judge Fletcher wants me in Cherokee County so that he and his cronies can do to me what they have done to Baugh and Fox.  

It is the specific allegation of complainant that, Joe Evans, Craig Caldwell, Craig Fletcher, Donna Dowling, and Cheryl Martin have acted in concert and collusion, one with the other, toward the purpose of denying complainant in complainant’s first amendment right as a journalist in order to prevent complainant from testifying as a witness to civil rights violations defendants have committed against others.  
It is the specific allegation of petitioner that the above acts were committed against petitioner in order to restrict petitioner in his right to free speech and petitioner’s duty to report crime.  

This complaint is being sent to Washington D. C. as Garrett Floyd, special agent who has jurisdiction and responsibility in Cherokee County has been made fully aware of the civil rights violations going on in Cherokee County and has chosen to turn a blind eye.  

Issues Presented

The criminal complaint in the instant cause should be dismissed for the following reasons: 

1. The original complaint is insufficient on its face as it alleges no facts in support of a simple allegation; 

2. The information issued by Cherokee County Attorney, Craig Caldwell, has no basis in fact as the criminal affidavit on which the information is based states no facts in support of the allegation; 

3. The information is defective as it was presented by Cherokee County Attorney, Craig Caldwell, who is disqualified by reason of, on the date relator is accused of committing the act of operating an investigating business, relator presented notice eleven criminal acts for which Caldwell is either the primary actor or is criminally culpable, to the grand jury for Cherokee County; 

4. The finding of probable cause is defective as said finding was made by The Honorable Judge Craig Caldwell based on no facts in support of the allegation;

5. The finding of probable cause is defective as said finding was made by The Honorable Judge Craig Caldwell who is disqualified by reason of, on the date relator is accused of committing the act of operating an investigating business, relator presented notice eleven criminal acts for which Caldwell is either the primary actor or is criminally culpable, to the grand jury for Cherokee County.  

6. Failure to appear complaint filed and warrant issued when defendant had never been arrested on the original allegation.  

statement of facts

Complaints to grand jury by petitioner

On the 23rd day of March, 2009, petitioner presented a number of criminal allegations to the Cherokee County Grand Jury.  The allegations were presented in an advisory capacity as the criminal affidavits were not signed or verified.  It was the intent of petitioner simply to give fair warning to the public officials involved that they could be answering for their behavior before a grand jury.  Petitioner also presented a copy of the allegations to Elmer Beckworth, Criminal District Attorney for Cherokee County Texas.  

Art. 20.09. DUTIES OF GRAND JURY.  

The grand jury shall inquire into all offenses liable to indictment of which any member may have knowledge, or of which they shall be informed by the attorney representing the State, or any other credible person.  Acts 1965, 59th Leg., vol. 2, p. 317, ch. 722.

Petitioner charged with crime for reporting crime

Instead of taking the hint, Joe Evans, investigator for the Cherokee County District Attorney, prepared a statement of probable cause accusing petitioner of operating an investigation business without a license.  In the statement, instead of the usual “I have reason to believe and do believe,” Evans stated, “That he has personal knowledge of the event as set forth below,” then Evans goes on to state the following: 

“That therefore, to-wit, on or about the 23rd day of March, A.D. 2009, and before the making and filing of this Complaint, in the County of Cherokee and the State of Texas, RANDALL D. KELTON, Defendant, did then and there knowingly act as an investigators company, without holding a license as an investigations company. “(see copy titled Cause 50481 attached.)
Petitioner, was notified by Beckworth that the foreman was sending the complaints I had dropped off back to me because,

 “You need to file the complaints with a policing agency so they can investigate the claims.”  

I asked Beckworth, 

“Who told the foreman that.”  

Beckworth went on to say that I could not waste the grand jury’s time with frivolous complaints.  I assure him I most certainly could and wanted to know who told the grand jury that.  

It was after this phone call that the complaint against me was filed by Evans.  So, it would seem to be to position of the district attorney and his investigator, Joe Evans, that it is a crime to investigate crime unless the person is a licensed private investigator or a police officer.  

Sec. 38.171.  FAILURE TO REPORT FELONY. 

(a) A person commits an offense if the person:

(1) observes the commission of a felony under circumstances in which a reasonable person would believe that an offense had been committed in which serious bodily injury or death may have resulted;  and 

(2) fails to immediately report the commission of the offense to a peace officer or law enforcement agency under circumstances in which:

(A) a reasonable person would believe that the commission of the offense had not been reported;  and

(B) the person could immediately report the commission of the offense without placing himself or herself in danger of suffering serious bodily injury or death.

(b) An offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor.

Added by Acts 2003, 78th Leg., ch. 1009, Sec. 2, eff. Sept. 1, 2003.

Perplexing paradox

It is the understanding of petitioner that failure to report a felony is a class A misdemeanor in Texas.  The complaints petitioner filed included a number of felonies.  Petitioner finds himself encompassed in a conundrum.  If petitioner comes to knowledge of felony crime, by way of petitioner’s profession as a talk radio show host and investigative journalist, petitioner must, by law, report said crimes or face prosecution, however, if petitioner makes a statement that is not true, petitioner can be prosecuted for tampering with a government document in violation of Section 37.10 Penal Code. 

37.10 Texas Penal Code: 

§ 37.10.  TAMPERING WITH GOVERNMENTAL RECORD.

A person commits an offense if he:

(a)
knowingly makes a false entry in, or false alteration of, a governmental record;

(b)
makes, presents, or uses any record, document, or thing with knowledge of its falsity and with intent that it be taken as a genuine governmental record;

(c)
intentionally destroys, conceals, removes, or otherwise impairs the verity, legibility, or availability of a governmental record;

 or even aggravated perjury Section 37.02 Texas Penal Code.  
Sec. 37.02.  PERJURY.  
(a) A person commits an offense if, with intent to deceive and with knowledge of the statement's meaning:
(1) he makes a false statement under oath or swears to the truth of a false statement previously made and the statement is required or authorized by law to be made under oath;  or  

(2) he makes a false unsworn declaration under Chapter 132, Civil Practice and Remedies Code.

(b)  An offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor.

Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Amended by Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994.

But then, if petitioner investigates into the things petitioner hears on his radio program, petitioner can be prosecuted for “acting as an investigator’s company” in violation of Section 1702.388 Texas Occupation Code.  

Sec. 1702.388.  VIOLATION OF CHAPTER;  OFFENSE.  

(a) A person commits an offense if the person violates a provision of this chapter for which a specific criminal penalty is not prescribed.

(b) An offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor, except that the offense is a felony of the third degree if the person has previously been convicted under this chapter of failing to hold a license, registration, certificate, or commission that the person is required to hold under this chapter.

Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 388, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1999.

Evans enters false statement on government record

On the 27th day of April, 2009, Joe Evans entered a statement on a government document to-wit, a statement of probable cause.  Evans failed to state any facts in support of the allegations as Evans knew the statement to be untrue and intended it be taken as true, in direct violation of Section 37.10 (supra).  

Evans perjured himself to prosecutor

Evans then presented said document to the Cherokee County Attorney, Craig Caldwell, who verified Evan’s affirmation of the truth of said document.  Therefore, petitioner alleges that, Joe Evans swore under oath to a material fact he knew to be untrue in violation of Section 37.02 (supra).  It is further alleged by petitioner that Evans committed the act of testilying with an evil mind toward the bad purpose of subjecting petitioner to the denial of the due course of the laws.  

Evans tampering with witness

It is further alleged that Evan’s criminal acts were perpetrated to the detriment of petitioner toward the purpose of tampering with petitioner as a witness against criminal violators of the law in violation of Section 36.05 Texas Penal code, 
Sec. 36.05.  TAMPERING WITH WITNESS.  

(a) A person commits an offense if, with intent to influence the witness, he offers, confers, or agrees to confer any benefit on a witness or prospective witness in an official proceeding or coerces a witness or prospective witness in an official proceeding:  

(1) to testify falsely; 

(2) to withhold any testimony, information, document, or thing;

(3) to elude legal process summoning him to testify or supply evidence;

(4) to absent himself from an official proceeding to which he has been legally summoned;  or

(5) to abstain from, discontinue, or delay the prosecution of another.

(b) A witness or prospective witness in an official proceeding commits an offense if he knowingly solicits, accepts, or agrees to accept any benefit on the representation or understanding that he will do any of the things specified in Subsection (a).

(c)  It is a defense to prosecution under Subsection (a)(5) that the benefit received was:

(1) reasonable restitution for damages suffered by the complaining witness as a result of the offense;  and

(2) a result of an agreement negotiated with the assistance or acquiescence of an attorney for the state who represented the state in the case.

(d) An offense under this section is a state jail felony.  

Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Amended by Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994;  Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 721, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1997.

in order to shield the accused from prosecution in violation of Section 38.05 Texas Penal Code, 
38.05. Hindering Apprehension or Prosecution

(a)
A person commits an offense if, with intent to hinder the arrest, prosecution, 
conviction, or punishment of another for an offense or, with intent to hinder the 
arrest, detention, adjudication, or disposition of a child for engaging in 
delinquent conduct that violates a penal law of the grade of felony, he:

(1) harbors or conceals the other;

(2) provides or aids in providing the other with any means of avoiding arrest or effecting escape; or

(3) warns the other of impending discovery or apprehension.

(b)
It is a defense to prosecution under Subsection (a)(3) that the warning was given in connection with an effort to bring another into compliance with the law.

(c)
An offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor, except that the offense is a felony of the third degree if the person who is harbored, concealed, provided with a means of avoiding arrest or effecting escape, or warned of discovery or apprehension is under arrest for, charged with, or convicted of a felony, or is in custody or detention for, is alleged in a petition to have engaged in, or has been adjudicated as having engaged in delinquent conduct that violates a penal law of the grade of felony, and the person charged under this section knew that the person they harbored, concealed, provided with a means of avoiding arrest or effecting escape, or warned of discovery or apprehension is under arrest for, charged with, or convicted of a felony, or is in custody or detention for, is alleged in a petition to have engaged in, or has been adjudicated as having engaged in delinquent conduct that violates a penal law of the grade of felony.

which would have the effect of obstructing justice in violation of Section 36.06 Texas Penal Code. 

Sec. 36.06.  OBSTRUCTION OR RETALIATION.  

(a) A person commits an offense if he intentionally or knowingly harms or threatens to harm another by an unlawful act:

(1) in retaliation for or on account of the service or status of another as a:

(A) public servant, witness, prospective witness, or informant; or

(B) person who has reported or who the actor knows intends to report the occurrence of a crime;  or

(2) to prevent or delay the service of another as a:

(A) public servant, witness, prospective witness, or informant; or

(B) person who has reported or who the actor knows intends to report the occurrence of a crime.

(b) In this section:

(1) "Honorably retired peace officer" means a peace officer who:

(A) did not retire in lieu of any disciplinary action;

(B) was eligible to retire from a law enforcement agency or was ineligible to retire only as a result of an injury received in the course of the officer's employment with the agency;  and

(C) is entitled to receive a pension or annuity for service as a law enforcement officer or is not entitled to receive a pension or annuity only because the law enforcement agency that employed the officer does not offer a pension or annuity to its employees.

(2) "Informant" means a person who has communicated information to the government in connection with any governmental function.

(3) "Public servant" includes an honorably retired peace officer.

(c) An offense under this section is a felony of the third degree unless the victim of the offense was harmed or threatened because of the victim's service or status as a juror, in which event the offense is a felony of the second degree.

Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Amended by Acts 1983, 68th Leg., p. 3238, ch. 558, Sec. 4, eff. Sept. 1, 1983;  Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 557, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1989;  Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994;  Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 239, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1997;  Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 835, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001;  Acts 2003, 78th Leg., ch. 246, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2003.

Caldwell acting in concert and collusion

On the 27th day of April, 2009, Cherokee County Attorney , Craig Caldwell, acting in concert and collusion with Joe Evans, prepared an information accusing petitioner of operating an investigation company without a license and presented said information to County Judge Craig Fletcher.  Neither may it be construed that Caldwell was unaware that the allegation alleged no facts that would constitute the commission of the statute.  While a criminal complaint can be made on hearsay, it cannot be made on nothing more than the mere allegation.  As there were no facts alleged in support of the allegation, therefore, the statement of Evans was clearly insufficient on it’s face.  

It is firmly established by the decisions of this Court that a decision to prosecute may not be based on the exercise by the potential defendant of protected constitutional or statutory rights.  See e.g., Cox v. Louisiana, 379 U.S. 536, 557-558 (1965); Wayte v. United States, 105 S.Ct. 1524, 1531 (1985); United States v. Goodwin, 457 U.S. 368, 372 (1982); Blackledge v. Perry, 417 U.S. 21, 27-29 (1974); North Carolina v. Pearce, 395 U.S. 711, 723-726 (1969); United States v. Falk, 479 F.2d 616, 618-619, 623 (7th Cir. 1973). The prosecution of a criminal case, or the threat of such prosecution, for the purpose of preventing or deterring the defendant from asserting a civil claim against the arresting officers or the prosecutor is plainly a prohibited interference with constitutionally guaranteed rights.  

A cornerstone of our system of constitutional government is the right of access to the courts to seek redress for violations of rights guaranteed by federal law.  See In Re Primus, 436 U.S. 412, 422-432 (1978); United Mine Workers of America v. Illinois State Bar Ass'n, 389 U.S. 217 (1967); NAACP v. Button, 371 U.S. 415 (1963) (all holding that First Amendment rights are impaired by restrictions on McDonnell, 418 U.S. 539, 579 (1974) ("The right of access to the courts . . . is founded in the Due Process Clause and assures that no person will be denied the opportunity to present to the judiciary allegations concerning violations of fundamental rights."); Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977).
Caldwell, being learned counsel, can hardly be construed to be unaware that, petitioner had filed eleven criminal complaints against Caldwell on the very date that petitioner was being accused of operating said investigating company, as petitioner notified both Caldwell and Fletcher, in open court, of the filings.  

By filing the false information, Caldwell suborned the perjury by Evans and put a false statement on an information in order to subject petitioner to a malicious prosecution.  Therefore, it is the allegation of petitioner that Caldwell conspired with Evans, in violation of Section 15.02 Texas Penal Code, 
Sec. 15.02.  CRIMINAL CONSPIRACY.  
(a) A person commits criminal conspiracy if, with intent that a felony be committed:
(1) he agrees with one or more persons that they or one or more of them engage in conduct that would constitute the offense;  and
(2) he or one or more of them performs an overt act in pursuance of the agreement.

(b) An agreement constituting a conspiracy may be inferred from acts of the parties.
(c) It is no defense to prosecution for criminal conspiracy that:
(1) one or more of the coconspirators is not criminally responsible for the object offense;
(2) one or more of the coconspirators has been acquitted, so long as two or more coconspirators have not been acquitted;
(3) one or more of the coconspirators has not been prosecuted or convicted, has been convicted of a different offense, or is immune from prosecution;
(4) the actor belongs to a class of persons that by definition of the object offense is legally incapable of committing the object offense in an individual capacity;  or
(5) the object offense was actually committed.

(d) An offense under this section is one category lower than the most serious felony that is the object of the conspiracy, and if the most serious felony that is the object of the conspiracy is a state jail felony, the offense is a Class A misdemeanor.
Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Amended by Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994.

to commit the crimes of perjury, subornation of perjury, tampering with a government document, shielding from prosecution, tampering with a witness and obstruction of justice.  

Judge Caldwell acted in concert and collusion

Upon the submission of the complaint and information to County Judge Craig Fletcher, Fletcher immediately issued a finding of probable cause and prepared a warrant for complainant’s arrest, knowing that petitioner had, that very day, filed eleven  criminal complaints with the grand jury against Fletcher.  Fletcher is also learned counsel, therefore, it can hardly be construed he was unaware that the allegation was insufficient on it’s face, and even if it were not, Fletcher was disqualified as a matter of law from attempting to act as a neutral magistrate.  

Fletcher found probable cause to believe petitioner had committed a crime and prepared a warrant accusing for the arrest of petitioner.  The statement by Evans, being the only evidence before the court, contained no allegations of facts and was, therefore, insufficient on it’s face to support a finding of probable cause.  

It is the allegation that the preparation of the warrant by Fletcher was an act of criminal conspiracy, in concert and collusion with others in the crimes of subordination of perjury, tampering with a government document, tampering with a witness, obstruction of justice, and shielding from prosecution.  

Deputy clerk issues illegal warrant

It is the further allegation of petitioner that, on the 27th day of April, 2009, Cherokee County Deputy Clerk, Donna Dowling, prepared a warrant for the arrest of petitioner.  It has been held by the courts that, while a district clerk in Texas may prepare a warrant for the arrest of a citizen, a county clerk may not as, in the case of a misdemeanor, a warrant may only be prepared by a magistrate after an examining trial.  
   In Crane, Judge Higginbotham addressed the requirement for a probable cause determination prior to the issuance of a misdemeanor capias under Texas law, read in its proper matrix of common law and constitutional standards.  Although recognizing that the Texas statutory scheme authorizing capias does not by its express terms require a probable cause determination: 

   "Article 23.04 of the Texas Criminal Code provides that 'in misdemeanor cases the capias or summons shall issue  [*422]  from a court having jurisdiction of the case.' At the same time, Article 23.03 provides that 'A capias shall be immediately issued by the district clerk upon each indictment for felony presented. . . .' (emphasis supplied).  As will be seen, this difference between 23.03 and 23.04 makes sense when read against the common law rules, and the Texas rules, of arrests for misdemeanors and felonies and explains Article 23.01 which defines capias . . . 'as a writ issued by the court or clerk, and directed to any peace officer of the State of Texas, commanding him to arrest a person accused of an offense [**30]  and bring him before that court immediately. . . .' The explanation is that the scheme presupposes an awareness that valid capias can issue only upon properly determined probable cause. In the case of a felony that determination is made by the grand jury in its decision to indict and it may be issued by the court clerk. With a misdemeanor capias issues not from a County Clerk but from a court with jurisdiction over the case.  I conclude then that Texas law requires that to be valid a misdemeanor capias must be issued from a court with jurisdiction over the case after a determination by a neutral magistrate of probable cause." Id. at page 5.

Judge Higginbotham's conclusion is inescapably correct, and we adopt it as our own.  To do otherwise would render the statutory scheme unconstitutional.

Petitioner, therefore, alleges that Donna Dowling, on or about the 27th day of April, 2009, impersonated a public official by the preparation of a warrant while acting under color of a non-existent authority, in violation of Section 37.11 Texas Penal Code.  

Sec. 37.11.  IMPERSONATING PUBLIC SERVANT. 

(a) A person commits an offense if he: 

(1) impersonates a public servant with intent to induce another to submit to his pretended official authority or to rely on his pretended official acts;  or

(2) knowingly purports to exercise any function of a public servant or of a public office, including that of a judge and court, and the position or office through which he purports to exercise a function of a public servant or public office has no lawful existence under the constitution or laws of this state or of the United States.

(b)  An offense under this section is a felony of the third degree.

Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Amended by Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994;  Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 189, Sec. 7, eff. May 21, 1997.

Court coordinator simulated a legal process

It is alleged that Cherokee County Court Coordinator, Cheryl Martin, prepared and mailed to petitioner a notice ordering petitioner to appear at the Cherokee County Court on the 17th day of June, 2009.  As no criminal allegation had ever been properly made against petitioner, it is the allegation of petitioner that the aforementioned order to appear in Cherokee County was a simulated legal process, in violation of Section 32.48 Texas Penal Code, 
Sec. 32.48.  SIMULATING LEGAL PROCESS.  

(a) A person commits an offense if the person recklessly causes to be delivered to another any document that simulates a summons, complaint, judgment, or other court process with the intent to:

(1) induce payment of a claim from another person;  or

(2) cause another to:

(A) submit to the putative authority of the document;  or

(B) take any action or refrain from taking any action in response to the document, in compliance with the document, or on the basis of the document.

(b) Proof that the document was mailed to any person with the intent that it be forwarded to the intended recipient is a sufficient showing that the document was delivered.

(c) It is not a defense to prosecution under this section that the simulating document:

(1) states that it is not legal process;  or
(2) purports to have been issued or authorized by  person or entity that did not have lawful authority to issue or authorize the document.

(d) If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the simulating document was filed with, presented to, or delivered to a clerk of a court or an employee of a clerk of a court created or established under the constitution or laws of this state, there is a rebuttable presumption that the document was delivered with the intent described by Subsection (a).  

(e) Except as provided by Subsection (f), an offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor.
(f) If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the defendant has previously been convicted of a violation of this section, the offense is a state jail felony.

Added by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 189, Sec. 3, eff. May 21, 1997.

mailed as a predicate act in an attempt to coerce petitioner to bring himself to Cherokee County where petitioner could be subjected to an ongoing criminal conspiracy perpetrated by public officials in Cherokee County to intimidate witnesses in any matter where any person who attempts to act as a witness in improper acts by Cherokee County public officials results in an orchestrated policy of false arrest, false imprisonment, physical abuse, malicious prosecution, as well as liable and slander intended to prevent anyone from acting in defense of their statutory or constitutional rights or the rights of others in violation of Section 71.01 Texas Penal Code.  

PENAL CODE   CHAPTER 71. ORGANIZED CRIME

Sec. 71.01.  DEFINITIONS.  In this chapter,

(a) "Combination" means three or more persons who collaborate in carrying on criminal activities, although:

(1) participants may not know each other's identity;

(2) membership in the combination may change from time to time;  and

(3) participants may stand in a wholesaler-retailer or other arm's-length relationship in illicit distribution operations.

(b) "Conspires to commit" means that a person agrees with one or more persons that they or one or more of them engage in conduct that would an overt act in pursuance of the agreement.  An agreement constituting conspiring to commit may be inferred from the acts of the parties.

(c) "Profits" means property constituting or derived from any proceeds obtained, directly or indirectly, from an offense listed in Section 71.02.

(d) "Criminal street gang" means three or more persons having a common identifying sign or symbol or an identifiable leadership who continuously or regularly associate in the commission of criminal activities.

Added by Acts 1977, 65th Leg., p. 922, ch. 346, Sec. 1, eff. June 10, 1977.  Amended by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 782, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1989;  Acts 1991, 72nd Leg., ch. 555, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1991;  Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994;  Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 318, Sec. 23, eff. Sept. 1, 1995.

Failure to appear charge falsely made

Relator received, through the mail, a notice to appear for an arraignment hearing in Cherokee County and the County Court.  The notice to appear was the first indication relator had that a complaint had been filed against relator.  Relator sent a friend to retrieve the charging information from the court and found that the original complaint and information was insufficient on their face (see above).  The warrant was invalid on it’s face as it had been issued by a court clerk instead of a magistrate.  Therefore, the warrant was insufficient to invoke the subject matter jurisdiction of the court.  Relator refused to take the risk of placing himself in the hands of obvious criminals so relator refused to appear at the time demanded by the court.   Instead, relator turned himself in to a magistrate in Denton County Justice of Peace, J.W. Hand, and demanded an examining trial, which Judge Hand agreed to provide.  At the examining trial, relator requested a continuance to allow time to attach witnesses and to secure a prosecutor for the state.  Judge Hand set relator to bail and continued the examining trial until the 15th day of July, 2009.  

In the 19th day of June, 2009 relator called Cherokee County Attorney, Craig Caldwell and apologized for not attending the party planed for him by Caldwell and informed Caldwell of the impending examining trial at which his presence would be appreciated.  Relator also asked if a warrant for failure to appear had been issued and if it had would he please forward same to Judge J.W. Hand in Roanoke, Texas.  Caldwell claimed that he did not know if a warrant had been issued but agreed to check and see.  Caldwell checked alright, he had one issued that day.  

The problem with the failure to appear charge is that, complainant had been taken into custody, but not in Cherokee County.  Complaint had been released on a promise to appear, but not in Cherokee County.  Complainant had been released on a promise to appear in Denton County before Judge J.W. Hand on the 15th day of July.  

Sec. 38.10.  BAIL JUMPING AND FAILURE TO APPEAR.  

(a) A person lawfully released from custody, with or without bail, on condition that he subsequently appear commits an offense if he intentionally or knowingly fails to appear in accordance with the terms of his release.  

(b) It is a defense to prosecution under this section that the appearance was incident to community supervision, parole, or an intermittent sentence.

(c) It is a defense to prosecution under this section that the actor had a reasonable excuse for his failure to appear in accordance with the terms of his release.
(d) Except as provided in Subsections (e) and (f), an offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor.
(e) An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor if the offense for which the actor's appearance was required is punishable by fine only.
(f) An offense under this section is a felony of the third degree if the offense for which the actor's appearance was required is classified as a felony.

Acts 1973, 63rd Leg., p. 883, ch. 399, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1974.  Renumbered from Penal Code Sec. 38.11 and amended by Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 900, Sec. 1.01, eff. Sept. 1, 1994.

Since complainant had never been arrested in Cherokee County, the Cherokee County Court had no subject matter jurisdiction to find probable cause for failure to appear and the subsequent warrant was void at its inception.  Further, this warrant, like the first one was signed by a deputy clerk of the County Court.  
Violations of federal rights and law
Defendant (list) conspired, one with the other, toward the purpose of retaliating against complainant for notifying the Cherokee County grand jury of crimes by numerous public officials, by conspiring to seize, by physical force, the corpus of complainant in violation of complainant’s Constitutional right to be free from unreasonable seizure.  Said intended forceful seizure was for the purpose of denying complainant in his right to freedom of speech and  tampering with complainant to prevent complainant from acting as a witness consequent to above referenced criminal complaints.  A false warrant was issued authorizing the arrest of complainant in furtherance of a pattern of behavior on the part of defendants.  Attached is a statement of facts which document how defendants and other officials in Cherokee County regularly act in concert and collusion, one with the other toward denying citizens in the due course of the laws by arresting anyone who would raise issues of civil right and order in Cherokee County.  

Joe Evans, while acting in the capacity of investigator for the Cherokee County District Attorney, Elmer Beckworth, conspired with Cherokee County Attorney, Craig Caldwell, in a clumsily crafted connivance toward the purpose of retaliation against complainant because complainant filed criminal complaints against Caldwell, et el with the Cherokee County grand jury.  On the very day complainant filed the above referenced criminal complaints with the Cherokee County Grand Jury, the 23 day of March, 2009, Evans prepared a criminal  accusing complainant of “operating a criminal investigation business without a license.”  A statement was prepared accusing complaint of said crime, however, the statement failed to stipulate any facts on which to establish probable cause.  It should not be construed that complainant raises an objection to the facts presented; complainant objects to the fact that there were no facts presented.  Evens simply made the allegations upon no facts what-so-ever.  
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In Studer v. State, 757 S.W.2d 107 (Tex. App. -- Dallas 1988), aff'd, 799 S.W.2d 263 (Tex. Crim. App. 1990) (en banc). the Dallas Court of Appeals conceded that Article 1.14(b) literally makes all charging defects, including defects of substance, waivable if not raised prior to trial. However, the court held that an instrument which fails to charge "the commission of an offense" is not constitutionally an indictment or information that invokes the court's jurisdiction upon presentment. Studer, 757 S.W.2d at 110 (citing TEX. CONST. art. V, § 12). The court further held that the requirement that the instrument charge the commission of an offense should be given a practical interpretation, and that the instrument is sufficient to constitute an indictment or information if it alleges "with reasonable specificity" the elements of the offense charged. Id. at 110-11.Two other courts of appeals,  [*227]  however, held that an instrument which fails to allege an element of the offense TEX. PENAL CODE ANN. § 1.07(a)(13) (Vernon 1974) (defining "element" of offense). does not charge the commission of an offense and, therefore, is not an indictment or information which, on presentment, invokes the court's jurisdiction. Oliver v. State, 787 S.W.2d 170, 171-72 (Tex. App. -- Beaumont 1990), rev'd, 808 S.W.2d 492 (Tex. Crim. App. 1991) (en banc); Murk v. State, 775 S.W.2d 415, 416 (Tex. App. -- Dallas 1989), rev'd, 815 S.W.2d 556 (Tex. Crim. App. 1991) (en banc).  

The charges brought against complainant were without facts in support because there are no facts to support the allegation.  It was simply made up by Evans and accepted by Caldwell in order to retaliate against complainant for raising issues of misconduct on the part of Caldwell and others.  

Fletcher

Judge Fletcher, in his turn, found probable cause with no cause shown for the same reason Caldwell issued an information when there was no information upon which to base the criminal allegation in order to intimidate complainant and prevent complainant from acting as a witness against Fletcher.  Fletcher,  subsequently, filed a criminal allegation of “failure to appear” when Fletcher was without subject matter jurisdiction to act in the case in the first instance and thereby, impersonated a public official for the purpose of filing the complaint against complainant.  

County clerk

Deputy county clerk for Cherokee County Texas, Donna Dowling, signed and filed a warrant of arrest for complainant.  As demonstrated above, in Texas, in matters of a misdemeanor warrant, the warrant must be issued by the magistrate who makes a finding of probable cause.  In the instant cause, deputy county clerk, Donna Dowling, acting under the direction and control of the elected county clerk, Laverne Lusk, impersonated a public official by acting under color of a non-existent official authority for the purpose of aiding in the false arrest and malicious prosecution of complainant.  

It may well be argued that deputy clerk Dowling acted in good faith reliance on competent authority when she signed the warrant.  It is anticipated that Dowling will simply claim that she simply didn’t know that she lacked the authority to issue a warrant.  In the instant cause, Dowling acted proactively, it was her intent that a warrant be issued under her signature of authority and that complainant be arrested and restricted at his liberty.  

He who defies a <!--<BR><BR></TD></TR><TR VALIGN=TOP><TD COLSPAN=2><!~~pgaenum~~><b>[ 89 L. Ed. Page 105]</b><!~~/pgaenum~~><BR><BR></td></tr><tr valign=top><td>&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;</TD><TD>-->decision interpreting the Constitution knows precisely what he is doing. If sane, he hardly` may be heard to say that he knew not what he did. Of course, willful conduct cannot make definite that which is undefined. But willful violators of constitutional requirements, which have been defined, certainly are in no position to say that they had no adequate advance notice that they would be visited with punishment. When they act willfully in the sense in which we use the word, they act in open defiance or in reckless disregard of a constitutional requirement which has been made specific and definite. When they are convicted for so acting, they are not punished for violating an unknowable something. Screws v U.S. 325 U.S. 91 @ 106

It was the intent of Dowling that a warrant issue under her name.  That the warrant was issued in violation of long standing law is a fact Dowling had a duty to know before Dowling took it upon herself to exercise the claimed authority.  

A reasonable person would assume that Dowling was advised to take the instant action by other public officials and would claim innocence as she was acting in accordance with officials she trusted to have authority over her in the instant regard.  The greater tragedy is that she may have acted with no malice, with the intent to do the right thing in good faith reliance that the claimed authority was actual, when in fact it was not. In such a case, the responsibility is on the actor to insure that an official actually has the authority claimed.  

Government is not partly public or partly private, depending upon the governmental pedigree of the type of a particular activity or the manner [*384]  in which the Government conducts it. The Government may carry on its operations through conventional executive agencies or through corporate forms especially created for defined ends. See Keifer & Keifer v. Reconstruction Finance Corp., 306 U.S. 381, 390. Whatever the form in which the Government functions, anyone entering into an arrangement with the Government takes the risk of having accurately ascertained that he who purports to act for the Government stays within the bounds of his authority. The scope of this authority may be explicitly defined by Congress or be limited by delegated legislation, properly exercised through the rule-making power. And this is so even though, as here, the agent himself may have been unaware of the limitations upon his authority. See, e. g., Utah Power & Light Co. v. United States, 243 U.S. 389, 409; United States v. Stewart, 311 U.S. 60, 70, and see, generally, The Floyd Acceptances, 7 Wall. 666 as quoted from Federal Crop Ins. Corp. v. Merrill, 332 U.S. 380, 384.

Dowling, on depending on the advice of others, runs the risk of getting bad advice or instruction.  When Dowling, or any other official, acts proactively in a manner that can effect the rights of another, has a responsibility to ensure her authority has been strictly construed by the Legislature. As of the writing to this document, complainant is restricted at his liberty subsequent to the preparation and filing of the warrant by Dowling.  The warrant for the arrest of complaint, signed by Donna Dowling, was executed when complainant turned himself in to Justice of Peace, JW Hand, in Roanoke, Texas.  The crimes referenced above, for purposes of culpability of conspirators became complete at the time of arrest as complainant suffered restriction at his liberty. At the present time, under the circumstances, complainant does not dare go to Cherokee County, Texas and witness against criminals for their participation in criminal activities for fear of more retaliation against complainant.  

Donna Dowling, whatever her protestations of innocence may be, has caused complainant to be falsely arrested and wrongfully restricted at his liberty in furtherance of a plot to interfere with complainant as a witness to felonies and misdemeanors which has the effect of obstructing justice by shielding those public officials originally accused from prosecution.  

1512.  Tampering with a witness, victim, or an informant

(a) 


(2) 
Whoever uses physical force or the threat of physical force against any 


person, or attempts to do so, with intent to--

     

 (A)
influence, delay, or prevent the testimony of any person in an 



official 
proceeding;

      

(B)
cause or induce any person to--

        


 (i)
withhold testimony, or withhold a record, document, or 




other object, from an official proceeding;

         


(ii) 
alter, destroy, mutilate, or conceal an object with intent 




to impair the integrity or availability of the object for use 



in an official proceeding;

         


(iii) 
evade legal process summoning that person to appear as 




a witness, or to produce a record, document, or other 




object, in an official proceeding; or

         


(iv)
 be absent from an official proceeding to which that 




person has been summoned by legal process; or

     

 (C) 
hinder, delay, or prevent the communication to a law 




enforcement officer or judge of the United States of information 



relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal 



offense or a violation of conditions of probation, supervised 



release, parole, or release pending judicial proceedings;

 


shall be punished as provided in paragraph (3).

  
 (3) 
The punishment for an offense under this subsection is--

      

(A) 
in the case of a killing, the punishment provided in sections 1111 


and 1112 [18 USCS �� 1111 and 1112];

      

(B) 
in the case of--

        


 (i) an attempt to murder; or

        


 (ii) 
the use or attempted use of physical force against any 




person;

     
 
imprisonment for not more than 30 years; and

     
 (C) 
in the case of the threat of use of physical force against any person, 


imprisonment 
for not more than 20 years.

 (b) 
Whoever knowingly uses intimidation, threatens or corruptly persuades another 
person, or attempts to do so, or engages in misleading conduct toward another 
person, with intent to--

   
(1) 
influence, delay or prevent the testimony of any person in an official 


proceeding;

  
 (2) 
cause or induce any person to--

      

(A) 
withhold testimony, or withhold a record, document, or other 



object, from an official proceeding;

      

(B) 
alter, destroy, mutilate, or conceal an object with intent to impair 


the object's integrity or availability for use in an official 




proceeding;

      

(C) 
evade legal process summoning that person to appear as a 



witness, or to produce a record, document, or other object, in an 



official proceeding; or

      

(D)
 be absent from an official proceeding to which such person has 



been summoned by legal process; or

   
(3) 
hinder, delay, or prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer 

or judge of the United States of information relating to the commission 


or possible commission of a Federal offense or a violation of conditions 


of probation, supervised release, parole, or release pending judicial 


proceedings;

 
shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

(c) 
Whoever corruptly--

  
 (1) 
alters, destroys, mutilates, or conceals a record, document, or other 


object, or attempts to do so, with the intent to impair the object's integrity 

or availability for use in an official proceeding; or

   
(2) 
otherwise obstructs, influences, or impedes any official proceeding, or 


attempts to do so,

 
shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

 (d) 
Whoever intentionally harasses another person and thereby hinders, delays, 

prevents, or dissuades any person from--

  
(1) 
attending or testifying in an official proceeding;

   
(2) 
reporting to a law enforcement officer or judge of the United States the 


commission or possible commission of a Federal offense or a violation of 

conditions of probation, supervised release, parole, or release pending 


judicial proceedings;

  
 (3) 
arresting or seeking the arrest of another person in connection with a 


Federal offense; or

   
(4)
 causing a criminal prosecution, or a parole or probation revocation 


proceeding, to be sought or instituted, or assisting in such prosecution or 


proceeding;

 
or attempts to do so, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 3 
years, or both.

 (e) 
In a prosecution for an offense under this section, it is an affirmative defense, as 
to which the defendant has the burden of proof by a preponderance of the 

evidence, that the conduct consisted solely of lawful conduct and that the 
defendant's sole intention was to encourage, induce, or cause the other person to 
testify truthfully.

 (f)
 For the purposes of this section--

   
(1) 
an official proceeding need not be pending or about to be instituted at the 

time of the offense; and

   
(2) 
the testimony, or the record, document, or other object need not be 


admissible in evidence or free of a claim of privilege.

 (g) 
In a prosecution for an offense under this section, no state of mind need be 
proved with respect to the circumstance--

   
(1) 
that the official proceeding before a judge, court, magistrate, grand jury, 


or government agency is before a judge or court of the United States, a 


United States magistrate [United States magistrate judge], a bankruptcy 


judge, a Federal grand jury, or a Federal Government agency; or

   
(2) 
that the judge is a judge of the United States or that the law enforcement 


officer is an officer or employee of the Federal Government or a person 


authorized to act for or on behalf of the Federal Government or serving 


the Federal Government as an adviser or consultant.

 (h) 
There is extraterritorial Federal jurisdiction over an offense under this section.

 (i) 
A prosecution under this section or section 1503 [18 USCS � 1503] may be 
brought in the district in which the official proceeding (whether or not pending or 
about to be instituted) was intended to be affected or in the district in which the 
conduct constituting the alleged offense occurred.

 (j) 
If the offense under this section occurs in connection with a trial of a criminal 
case, the maximum term of imprisonment which may be imposed for the offense 
shall be the higher of that otherwise provided by law or the maximum term that 
could have been imposed for any offense charged in such case.

 (k) 
Whoever conspires to commit any offense under this section shall be subject to 
the same penalties as those prescribed for the offense the commission of which 
was the object of the conspiracy.

It is firmly established that a decision to prosecute may not be based on the exercise by the potential defendant of protected constitutional or statutory rights. See e.g., Cox v. Louisiana, 379 U.S. 536, 557-558 (1965); Wayte v. United States, 105 S.Ct. 1524, 1531 (1985); United States v. Goodwin, 457 U.S. 368, 372 (1982); Blackledge v. Perry, 417 U.S. 21, 27-29 (1974); North Carolina v. Pearce, 395 U.S. 711, 723-726 (1969); United States v. Falk, 479 F.2d 616, 618-619, 623 (7th Cir. 1973). The prosecution of a criminal case, or the threat of such prosecution, for the purpose of preventing or deterring [*10]  the defendant from asserting a civil claim against the arresting officers or the prosecutor is plainly a prohibited interference with constitutionally guaranteed rights.  
A cornerstone of our system of constitutional government is the right of access to the courts to seek redress for violations of rights guaranteed by federal law. See In Re Primus, 436 U.S. 412, 422-432 (1978); United Mine Workers of America v. Illinois State Bar Ass'n, 389 U.S. 217 (1967); NAACP v. Button, 371 U.S. 415 (1963) (all holding that First Amendment rights are impaired by restrictions on McDonnell, 418 U.S. 539, 579 (1974) ("The right of access to the courts . . . is founded in the Due Process Clause and assures that no person will be denied the opportunity to present to the judiciary allegations concerning violations of fundamental rights."); Bounds v. Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977).
Repeated attempts have been made with


__________________

Randall D. Kelton

PO Box 1 

Boyd, TX 76023

940-399-9922

Jurat


By the signing herein, I ______________________ do swear on my oath that all statements and all facts alleged are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief so help me. 		Signed: ____________________


Signed and sworn before me __________________________________, on  the _____ day of __________________, 2009.


Notary Signature:    ____________________________________
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